
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI 
 

Board of Aldermen - Regular Session 
 

  

 

7:00 p.m. 
 

July 21, 2020 
 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

  

AGENDA ...................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

CONSENT AGENDA .................................................................................................................................................. 6 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN MINUTES – JULY 7, 2020 WORK SESSION ................................................................................. 7 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN MINUTES – JULY 7, 2020 REGULAR SESSION ........................................................................... 24 
FINANCE REPORT – JUNE 2020 ................................................................................................................................. 31 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT .................................................................................................................. 32 

ZONING 2412 NE 157TH TERRACE ................................................................................................................... 36 

HAZARDOUS MITIGATION PLAN ..................................................................................................................... 41 

BID AWARD - EAST MAIN STREET TRAIL..................................................................................................... 43 

ASSESSMENT OF UTILITY LATE FEES ............................................................................................................ 52 

NEHEMIAH FESTIVAL 2020 ............................................................................................................................... 66 

CITY HALL IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT ADDENDUM .............................................................................. 72 

CARES ACT FUNDING – AWARD SMALL BUSINESS GRANTS ................................................................ 77 

CARES ACT FUNDING - BID AWARD NO. 20-09 – TOUCHLESS FIXTURES ....................................... 84 

ADDENDUM TO CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S CONTRACT ............................................................................. 87 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 3 July 21, 2020 

AGENDA 

 

City of Smithville, Missouri 
 

Board of Aldermen – Regular Session Agenda  
 

July 21, 2020  
 

7:00 pm or immediately following the Work Session – City Hall Council 
Chambers **Via Videoconference** 

 

NOTICE:   *Due to the Governor’s Emergency Declaration and the Health 
Officer’s orders for safety, public meetings and public comment during public 
meetings will require modification.  The City of Smithville is committed to 
transparent public meetings and will continue this commitment during the 
COVID-19 crisis.  Anyone who wishes to view the meeting may do so in real time 
as it will be streamed live on the city’s FaceBook page through FaceBook Live.  
Attendance in person by members of the public will not be permitted.  
 

For Public Comment, please email your request to the City Clerk at 
ldrummond@smithvillemo.org prior to the meeting to be invited via Zoom.  
 

1. Call to Order  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Consent Agenda  
• Minutes 

o July 7, 2020 Board of Alderman Work Session Minutes 
o July 7, 2020 Board of Alderman Regular Session Minutes 

 

• Finance Report for June  
o Finance  

 

REPORTS FROM OFFICERS AND STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

4. Committee Reports 
Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

5. City Administrator’s Report 
 
 

mailto:ldrummond@smithvillemo.org


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 4 

ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 
 

6. Bill No. 2864-20, Zoning 2412 NE 157th Terrace to R-1B – 1st Reading 
   An Ordinance to approve the zoning of 2412 NE 157th Terrace, Lakeside Crossing 

recently annexed into the City Limits to R-1B.  The initial zoning needs to be set by 
the City.  1st reading by title only. 

 

7. Resolutions 799, Hazardous Mitigation Plan  
A Resolution to adopt the 2020 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan required 
by FEMA. 

 

8. Resolution 800, Award Bid No. 20-07, East Main Street Trail  
A Resolution to award Bid No. 20-07 and authorize and direct the Mayor Pro-Tem to 
enter into an agreement with Amino Brothers Co., Inc for the amount of 
$1,297,786.10 and authorize a contingency/force account in an amount of $50,000. 

 

9. Resolution 801, Assessment of Utility Late Fees 
 A Resolution approving the reinstatement of the application of delinquent charges 
and continued suspension of discontinuance of water service. 

 

10. Resolution 802, Nehemiah Festival 2020 
A Resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor to execute an agreement with 
Grace Community Church for use of Smith’s Fork Park to host a music festival. 
 

11. Resolution 803, City Hall Improvement Contract Addendum  
A Resolution to approve the addendum approve Addendum No. 1 to the contract 
with Bruner Contracting Co., LLC for an additional amount of $5,168.00. 
 

12. Resolution 804-805, CARES Act Funding 
Approve Resolutions related to CARES Act Funding 
 

A. Resolution 804, Award Business Grants 
 A Resolution to authorize distribution of the small business grants as   
 recommended by Clay County EDC and reviewed by the Board of   
 Aldermen. 
 

B. Resolution 805, Award Bid No. 20-09, Touchless Fixtures 
 A Resolution to award Bid No. 20-09 to Lexington Plumbing and authorize 

and direct the Mayor Pro-Tem to execute an agreement in an amount not to 
exceed $124,000.00. 

 

13. Resolution 806, Addendum to the City Administrator’s Contract 
A Resolution to approve the addendum to the contract with Cynthia Wagner for 
services as City Administrator based on the review conducted by the Board of 
Aldermen.  
 

OTHER MATTERS BEFORE THE BOARD 
 

14. Public Comment  
Pursuant to the public comment policy, an email request must be submitted to 
the City Clerk at ldrummond@smithvillemo.org prior to the meeting. When 

mailto:ldrummond@smithvillemo.org


  Regular Session 

 Page 5 July 21, 2020 

recognized, please state your name, address and topic before speaking. Each 
speaker is limited to three (3) minutes. 
 

15. New Business From The Floor 
Pursuant to the order of business policy, members of the Board of Aldermen may 
request a new business item appear on a future meeting agenda.  

 

16. Adjourn 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/PlanningCalendar-FutureMeetingsagenda11736134071620-100906AMa.pdf


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 6 

CONSENT AGENDA 

    City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: July 21, 2020 Department: Administration 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 

Summary: 
 

Voting to approve would approve the Board of Aldermen minutes and Finance Report. 

Purpose: 

The Board of Aldermen can review and approve by a single motion. Any item can be 
removed from the consent agenda by a motion.  The following items are included for 
approval: 
 

Minutes 
   

o Approve the July 7, 2020 Board of Alderman Work Session Minutes 
o Approve the July 7, 2020 Board of Alderman Regular Session Minutes 

 

Financial Report 
   

o Finance Report for June 2020 

Impact 

Comprehensive Plan: N/A 

Economic Development Plan: N/A 

Parks Master Plan: N/A 

Strategic Plan: N/A 

Capital Improvement Plan: N/A 

Budget: N/A 

Legislative History: 

N/A 

Suggested Action: 

A motion to approve the consent agenda 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

 Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other:  Finance Report 

https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/FinanceReport-June2020agenda11736134071620-103619AMb.pdf


  Regular Session 

 Page 7 July 21, 2020 

Board of Aldermen Minutes –  July 7, 2020 Work Session 
  

SMITHVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMAN 
WORK SESSION 

July 7, 2020 5:00 p.m.  
City Hall Council Chambers 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic this meeting was held via teleconference.     
 

Mayor, Aldermen, City Administrator, City Staff and City Attorney attended via 
the Zoom meeting app.  The meeting was streamed live on the city’s YouTube 
page with a link on the city’s FaceBook page.  Attendance in person by members 
of the public was not be permitted.   

 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Boley called the Work Session meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. Board members 
present via Zoom: John Chevalier, Marv Atkins, Steve Sarver, Melissa Wilson and 
Jeff Bloemker. Dan Ulledahl joined the meeting at 5:10.   
 
Staff present via Zoom: Cynthia Wagner, Nickie Lee, Chuck Soules, Dan Toleikis, 
Jack Hendrix, Matt Denton, Jason Lockridge, Linda Drummond and City Attorneys 
John Reddoch and Scott Sullivan. 

 
2. 2020 Tax Rate Update 

Dan Toleikis, Finance Director, explained that we have to file the 2020 tax rate with 
the counties by September 1 in order to meet State deadline.  The county has to 
issue us what are called post-BOE number and we usually get those in late July or 
early August.  The City must either publish public notice on the hearing in one 
newspaper in general circulation of Clay and Platte Counties or publish public notice 
of the hearing in at least three public places in the political subdivision. Either must 
take place seven days prior to the public hearing. Two readings of an Ordinance 
setting the tax rate are required.   

 

The City received the pre-BOE letters last week, so we have some assessed value 
information that was included in the staff report.  Dan stated that it is highly unlikely 
that we will have the post-BOE information in time to have the first reading on 
August 4 and a second reading on August 18.  We might be lucky enough to be able 
to do an emergency first and second reading on August 18.  If not, Dan asked the 
Board to set aside a date to have a potential special meeting in late August, the later 
the better.   

 
In the staff report Dan provided the last three years of history for the pre-BOE. The 
change from 2019 to 2020 is that assessed value is 3.8%.  Dan did note that Clay 
County has an adjustment on our pre-BOE for the parcels that make up the TIF.  
Their assess value over and above what they were at the time that the TIF was 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 8 

established gets deducted out of are assessed values because those property taxes 
go back to the TIF.   
 

Also included in the staff report were three years of history for the post-BOE. The 
increase for it is somewhere in the middle of 4.5% each of the last three years.  We 
are anticipating something similar this year.   
 

The Board set the date of August 31 at 5:30 p.m. for a special meeting if it is 
needed. 
 

3. Discussion Schedule of Fees 
Dan reported that included in the staff report on the Schedule of Fees were two 
changes staff is looking at for the Police Department.  The first one is obtaining a 
copy of a video.  We currently offer videos one of two ways, either a link to the 
video in the cloud or on a USB drive.  In the past year, the USB drives have not 
been requested very often and they are a little time-consuming for staff.  The cloud 
links are requested more often and are working great. The cloud links also allow us 
to social distance in light of COVID.  Staff is making a recommendation to remove 
the USB option and only offer those video reports as a cloud link. 
 

The second recommendation from staff is regarding municipal court fees. They are 
still listed in our schedule of fees.  Municipal Court was transferred to Clay County 
on January 1, 2019 and at that time we did not know what effect it might have.  
Staff feels confident now that we are 18 months into the transfer that we do not 
need those in our Schedule of Fees.   
 

The next item is regarding payments in lieu of dedication of land for recreation 
which is not part of the schedule of fees.   This fee is directly stated in Section 
425.220 of the Code of Ordinances, so it is not listed in the Schedule of Fees.  
 

Jack Hendrix, Development Director, explained that Mayor Boley had requested that 
staff come up with a potential solution to the inequities, not just single-family 
developments through the subdivision ordinance.  Jack proposed some language 
that could go into the Comprehensive Plan and the Parks Master Plan.  
 

John Reddoch, City Attorney, has been working with staff for the best way to 
implement this, if the board implements it.   Jack explained that the building permit 
fee version may not work legally and may need to go into a subdivision ordinance. 
Jack said the question is does the Board want to try to equalize the scenario such 
that all dwelling units provide some assistance for the park improvements?  And, 
exactly how do they want to do this.  Jack provided examples at the end of the 
memorandum of other communities and how what they are doing for this.  
 

City   Park Fees in lieu of dedication 
Gladstone  $10,000 
 (the lesser of $200.00 per acre or $50.00 per dwelling 

unit)  



  Regular Session 

 Page 9 July 21, 2020 

 
Kansas City  $33,000.00 (Single Family) 
   Actual formula for KC uses census density of: 
   3.7 for single family ($39,387.10) 
   3.0 for two family ($31,935.49) 
   2.7 for multifamily ($28,741.94)     
 
Kearney  $65,000 (Residential only)   
 
Liberty  $74,400 (Residential) 
 
Platte City  $46,500 (residential) 
   *$61,380 (commercial and industrial) 
   Commercial and Industrial developments are calculated by 
   assuming 4 houses per acre on the land. 
 
Smithville  $125,000 (residential subdivisions only) 

 

Jack stated that if the Board wished to include industrial and commercial 
subdivisions as well, we would need John’s help crafting something that sets the 
standards.   
 
Mayor Boley said he asked staff to look into this because we have a lot of large lot 
subdivisions coming in.  During the Comprehensive Planning and the Strategic 
Planning process we talked about needing multi-family housing.  We have seen 
more commercial development come into Smithville and all those have impacts on 
our park system.  One of the main pillars that came out of the planning sessions was 
improvements to the parks and trails.  The voters also spoke in the election when 
the said yes to a sales tax for parks and trails.  
 
Alderwoman Wilson said we do need to look at leveling that across the board. She 
said we need this the multi-family that may be coming but did not know about 
commercial. She thinks we really need to look hard at leveling that across the new 
developments. 
 
Mayor Boley asked Jack if he was correct and developments like Brandywine Cove 
and Whiskey Ridge do not pay a parks fee?  
 
Jack said that was correct, if they are zoned A1 with ten-acre lots or if they are 
zoned AR they are in the agricultural districts.  The current version says residential 
only.  
 
Mayor Boley said they are not raising cattle and horses in those subdivision, they are 
single family homes with people living in them that use the park system.  
 
Alderman Bloemker said he echoed the sentiments of Alderwoman Wilson. He said 
our voters spoke and our constituents clearly spoke throughout the planning process 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 10 

that parks are a priority.  He encouraged staff find a solution and bring it forward so 
we can level things out. 
 
Mayor Boley asked if the Board had any objections to moving forward on this? 
 
The Board had no objections. 
 
The Mayor directed staff to move forward with the all residential and also bring 
forward an example for commercial. 
Jack explained that this will first have to go to the Planning Commission before it 
comes to the Board. 
 

4. Discussion of Revenue 
Dan went over the chart of our revenues by source, what we budgeted, where we 
are year-to-date as of June 30, a projection for FY20 and a raw number for what we 
are thinking FY21 might look like.  

TOTAL REVENUES, BY SOURCE  FY20 Budget   FY20 YTD*   FY20 Projection   FY21 Budget  

PROPERTY TAXES          867,480.00  881,441.68          889,440.00  886,950.00 

SALES AND USE TAXES       1,500,700.00  1,034,655.57       1,550,500.00        1,590,830.00  

FRANCHISE TAXES          875,740.00  403,553.28          703,050.00           681,430.00  

OTHER TAXES          318,350.00  222,456.29          320,910.00           322,040.00  

LICENSES, FEES, AND PERMITS          382,690.00  257,054.18          352,500.00           327,620.00  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES            44,800.00  23,787.80            29,000.00             49,280.00  

CHARGES FOR SERVICES          234,880.00  63,999.76          175,440.00           241,090.00  

FINES AND FORFEITS          167,310.00  88,772.50          149,160.00           168,980.00  

INTEREST          150,000.00  85,499.68          113,260.00             42,000.00  

DONATIONS             3,580.00  -             3,580.00              4,750.00  

OTHER REVENUE                      -    946,493.41                470.00                 400.00  

DEBT ISSUED                      -    -                      -                         -    

TRANSFERS IN                      -    88,385.65          184,130.00           197,880.00  

TOTAL REVENUES    4,545,530.00  4,096,099.80    4,471,440.00     4,513,250.00  

* year-to-date is through June 30, 2020 
 

Dan explained that one of the taxes under the franchise tax is a tax that utilities pay.  
It is basically a transfer that we do from our water fund to the general fund.  In the 
audit last year, the auditors suggested that instead of calling that a Franchise Tax 
we treat as a transfer.   
 

The purpose of this review is mostly to investigate how COVID-19 is having an 
impact on our revenues.  
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 11 July 21, 2020 

Property Taxes 
Property taxes are billed every November and are due in December, we receive 
most of the money in January and February.  We have collected $881,000 so far and 
that represents about 97% collection rate.  Historically our collections have 
improved over the last few years from about 85% to more than 99% last year. Due 
to COVID-19 potentially having financial impacts on property owners we do not 
anticipate that collection for the rest of this year to reach the 99% rate.  The 
projection of $889,000 represents a 98% collection rate.  Dan said the real question 
is how COVID-19 is going to impact people paying their property taxes this coming 
December 2020. To get the budget figure for next year of $887,000 we used the 
current Pre-Board of Equalization assessed value numbers multiplied by a 4.2% 
increase, which is a little bit on the conservative side on the assessed value figures.  
Staff estimates that our property tax rate will stay the same, but we dropped our 
collection rate down to 92%.  We are associating the dip from 98% last year to 92% 
next year due to COVID-19. 
 
Alderwoman Wilson asked how staff came up with 92%?   
 
Dan said it was just an educated guess.  He explained that we believe it is going to 
decrease and it is difficult to know just how far it will decrease.  Dan has had 
conversations with the City’s financial advisor, Todd Goffoy, and we feel that it will 
fall like it did in 2007-2009.  Staff looked at the data from the Kansas City 
metropolitan area since we do not have much data from that time for Smithville. 
 
Alderwoman Wilson asked if we should drop it to 90%? 
 
Dan said that the 90% is a more conservative number and he would change it. 
 
Mayor Boley asked if staff knew what our lowest percentage has been since 2000? 
 
Dan explained that our data only goes back to 2013. 
 
Alderwoman Wilson asked if staff could reach out to Clay County and get the data 
history. 
 
Dan said that he would reach out to them. 
 
Sales and Use Tax Revenue 
Dan explained that from last year to this year we assumed a 2% growth in sales and 
a small incremental amount for sales from the TIF district.  To date we are at just 
over $1,000,000 in sales revenue. 
 
The following graph shows general sales tax revenue received each month 
beginning with November 2018. FY20 revenue has exceeded FY19 revenue in every 
month except March 2020. 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 12 

 
 

The next graph rearranges the monthly sales tax revenue data from the month it 
was received by the City to the month for which sales were reported. 
 

 
 

Dan explained that in the sales tax data reports he can see how many businesses we 
have registering sales and how many businesses have reported for each of those 
months. The FY20 sales tax data above for November 2019, December 2019, and 
January 2020 reflect nearly 100% of all businesses reporting their sales data for 
those months. The February 2020 sales data reflects about 88% of businesses 
reporting, the March 2020 sales data reflects about 82% of businesses reporting, 
and the April 2020 sales data reflects only about 53% of businesses reporting. All 
three of these data points will move higher on this graph. 
 
The following graph shows use tax revenue received each month beginning with 
November 2018, and that data rearranged from the month it was received by the 
City to the month for which sales were reported. 
 

$40,000

$90,000

$140,000

General Sales Tax Revenue by Month

FY19 FY20

$60,000

$70,000

$80,000

$90,000

$100,000

$110,000

$120,000

Sales Tax Distrubuted by Reporting Month

FY18 FY19 FY20



  Regular Session 

 Page 13 July 21, 2020 

 
 
 

 
 

Use tax data has a bit more of a lag in the reporting than sales tax data, and also a 
larger number of businesses who report. The FY20 use tax data for December 2019 
and March 2020 reflect nearly 100% of quarterly and annual submitters reporting. 
However, the November 2019 – March 2019 use tax data reflects about 80-85% of 
monthly submitters reporting, and the April 2020 use tax data reflects only about 
47% of monthly submitters reporting. All FY20 data points should continue to move 
a bit higher on this graph. 
 
The draft FY21 Budget amount is based 2.6% growth in sales and use taxes, and 
this includes projected new sales at the Smithville Marketplace. 
 
Alderman Ulledahl asked what type of businesses would not report on a specific 
time? 
 
Dan explained that some business report monthly, some quarterly and some 
annually.  He said we also have businesses that ship items to Smithville. 
 

$8,000

$15,000

$22,000

$29,000

$36,000

$43,000

$50,000

Use Tax Revenue by Month

FY19 FY20

$10,000
$16,000
$22,000
$28,000
$34,000
$40,000
$46,000

Use Tax Distrubuted by Reporting Month

FY19 FY20



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 14 

Mayor Boley said we also have businesses that are seasonal. 
 
Franchise Taxes  
Dan explained that we have seen general decline in Franchise Taxes over the last 
few years these are due to people moving away from having cable service or home 
phone service. 
 
Other Taxes 
This includes Fuel Tax, Motor Vehicle Fees, and Road and Bridge Tax.  
Indications are that these tax revenues have remained as projected in the FY20 
Budget and COVID-19 has not had a significant impact on them. 
 
Licenses, Fees, And Permits 
Residential building permits are down in 2020 when compared to 2019. It is difficult 
to tie this directly to COVID-19, but staff believes it is playing a part. However, we 
have seen the revenue from two commercial building permits associated with the 
TIF, which made up a significant amount of the expected loss from residential 
permits. Overall, staff anticipates a loss of $48,200. 
 
The draft FY21 budget is based on a conservative residential building permit count 
for 2021. 
 
Intergovernmental Revenue 
At the time school was closed due to COVID-19, the two SRO officers were placed 
into the normal patrol schedule. Reimbursement from the school for the officers’ pay 
and benefits stopped. Staff anticipates a loss of $12,070. 
 
Additionally, staff postponed participation in the DWI Enforcement Grant program 
due to COVID-19. Staff anticipates a loss of $3,000. 
 
The draft FY21 budget includes a return to normal for Intergovernmental Revenue, 
which could change based on the school’s reopening timeline, and reinstatement of 
the DWI Grant program 
 
Alderwoman Wilson asked if staff had reached out to the school about possible 
reimbursement for the second SRO? 
 
Cynthia said that she had not had any conversations with the school about it. 
 
Alderwoman Wilson said she believes it is time for them to cover the cost for the 
second SRO. 
 
Alderman Bloemker said he agreed. 
 
Mayor Boley said there was a joint meeting for the Board and School Board coming 
up and it could be discussed then. 



  Regular Session 

 Page 15 July 21, 2020 

 
Alderwoman Wilson said she realized they had already set their budget, but we 
could possibly look at phased increases for the next school budget year. 
 
Charges for Services 
Spring and summer youth and adult recreation programs were canceled due to 
COVID-19. Staff anticipates a loss of $17,230.  
 
Additionally, the start of the Smith’s Fork Campground season was delayed from 
April 1 to June 1. Staff anticipates a loss of $33,020. 
 
The draft FY21 budget includes a return to normal for youth and adult recreation 
programming and campground operations. 
 
Mayor Boley asked if for month to month, are we up on our numbers for the months 
we have been open? 
 
Dan said when the campground opens on April 1 that is our highest grossing day 
because everybody calls then and books the entire summer.  This year we had that 
happen when we opened June 1.  This year our June revenue is going to look higher 
than June last year. 
 
Mayor Boley asked for the booking numbers for this year. 
 
Cynthia said that Matt does have those numbers and has provided it to her.  She 
said that she has not had a chance to look at it yet, but she will forward the 
information to the Board. 
 
Mayor Boley said the campground is one area where we could make up some of our 
lost funds where we cannot with the youth sports. 
 
Cynthia said that the uniforms purchased for the spring sports will be used for fall so 
we will not be out the money for them. 
 
Matt explained that the campground had sold out for all of June and July. 
 
Fines & Forfeits 
Clay County canceled its March and April court dates due to COVID-19. Cases that 
would have appeared on those dockets are being rescheduled, however, with limited 
room on each docket, it may take a long time for cases to be caught up. Staff 
anticipates a loss of $18,150. 
 
The draft FY21 budget includes a return to normal for Clay County court operations. 
 
 
 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 16 

Interest 
Interest rates dropped drastically due to COVID-19. Staff anticipates a loss of 
$36,740. 
 

The draft FY21 budget assumes the interest rate does not recover in 2021. 
 

Mayor Boley said it would have been worse if we had not moved some of the money 
to CD’s. 
 

Dan explained that our FY20 budget is $4,545,000 and the projection right now is 
$4,471,000 for a loss of about $74,000 in total.  On the operational side the 
projected expenditures for a year is just over $4,400,000 so we are still looking at a 
revenue over expenditures amount of about $63,000.  We could look at doing 
something with that money, there are a couple suggestions that staff might have 
but this can be discussed at a later date. 
 

5. Discussion of Fleet 
Nickie Lee, Assistant City Administrator, explained that the Board and staff have 
been talking pretty extensively for the past couple of years about the City’s fleet.  
Over the last year staff has brought a review of the City’s existing inventory.  A list 
of all vehicles by Department along with a list of equipment.  Staff did a pretty good 
job under the Board’s direction of reviewing what could be shared what could be 
surplus and repurposed.  Nickie said that with Chuck Soules, Public Works Director, 
and his background history we definitely appreciate his experience of overseeing 
different fleet divisions at several different organizations.  Based on Board direction 
staff has been discussing and researching the option of leasing vehicles which is one 
option that came from the Board last year.  Nickie explained that Enterprise is 
present to explain what their Fleet Leasing and Fleet Management looks like.   
 

Nickie said that what we are discussing tonight really only addresses a portion of our 
fleet.  She explained that we have a 120-pieces of equipment and 45 of which are 
vehicles not included in this lease proposal. Those pieces of equipment consist of the 
dump trucks, the mowers, spreaders, etc. Those will be addressed in the future in 
our vehicle replacement program.   
 

Nickie explained that the other really important item tonight's discussion does not 
include is our Patrol vehicles, basically our police vehicles that respond to calls.  
Because of the high mileage they are on a different schedule.  
 

Staff is recommending that we proceed with putting 27 into this fleet management 
lease program. 
 

Brandon Scott, Account Executive with Enterprise Fleet Management, explained that 
he has been with Enterprise for 12 years.  He moved to the Kansas City Fleet 
Management division about a year-and-a-half ago.  
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 17 July 21, 2020 

He explained that leasing is typically most successful on the white fleet the half-ton 
pickups, three-quarter ton pickups, cargo vans, one-ton trucks and up to 5500 
series.  He said where cities get the most value is with the light and medium-duty 
vehicles.  Enterprise just finalized partnership last month with Raymore, 
Leavenworth County, Kansas, Saline County, Missouri, the United Government of 
Wyandotte County, Kansas and are taking our program to counsel in Gladstone.  
They had a meeting with City of Independence outlining the dates to go to their 
council. 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 18 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 19 July 21, 2020 

They look at police vehicles differently than the white fleet vehicles.  They have a lot 
more miles and specialized equipment, so they were not include in the analysis. 
 

Brandon explained that this not your typical dealership lease, it is very different.  
Enterprise helps cities with all phases from all the way through resale.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Brandon explained how the Equity Lease works. You have the initial vehicle cost of 
$32,000 for a 2020 Ford F250 regular cab pickup truck on a five-year term at 7,500 
miles per year.   Instead of the $32,000 acquisition through the government 
contract, you would be able to get it for $24,400.  This is different than a dealership 
lease where we finance it down to a $0 balance, they finance it down to a reduced 
book value of $6,100.  So, for the Equity Lease you have your monthly payments for 
example $420 a month for five-years vehicle with 32000 miles on it with a re-sale 
value of $17,500.  This is very different than your traditional dealership lease.  With 
this program they give you the difference between the sales price and the residual 
on the vehicle so in this example $11,400 in equity is money that is the City of 
Smithville’s.  
 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 20 

Government buying power example is a 2020 F250 extended cab 4x4 truck retail  
cost is $36,000.  Using the Equity Lease contract, you would be able to get that 
truck for $28,200.  If they sell that truck at one-year-old with 5,000 miles on it you 
would be looking at a sale price of $33,000 versus the acquisition price of $28,200 
so you can literally be  able to sell it for more than what you bought it for.  He 
explained that this does not work with police vehicles, because of the miles.  The 
lease also does not work with booms, cranes, spreaders, etc.  
 

Brandon said that they would be meeting with the City two to three times a year to 
be able to identify savings opportunities.  They would recommend ways to maximize 
equity.  He explained that their theory is if they can continue to maximize equity and 
continue to lower costs cities would still continue to order vehicles through them. 
 

Another point Brandon made was from a safety perspective, vehicles that are older 
than 2012 model year do not come with electronic stability control.  The Highway 
Traffic Safety Administration has said that this is the most important safety features 
since the invention of the seat belt. 
 

Alderman Bloemker thanked staff for all their hard work on this. 
 

Alderwoman Wilson asked if we were to move forward with this and decided it was 
not working, what would be the process to get out of it? 
 

Brandon said that there is no penalty to opt out.  There is no long-term 
commitment.  You would just buy the vehicles outright. 
 

Dan explained that in the packet are spreadsheets with three different scenarios. 
They are broken-up by department, Development, Parks and Recreation, Police 
Vehicles that are not patrol vehicles, Street and Utilities. 
 

The prices for the lease vehicles are examples due to the fact prices will likely 
change in the fall.  The first year if we sell our vehicles, we would have 
approximately $136,000 and the lease payment would be around $132,000. 
 

Dan explained if during the lease we decided we wanted out, it would cost 
somewhere between $500,000 to $600,000 to purchase the vehicles outright. 
He said that the discussion we need the Board to have is do we want to have the 
funds set aside so we have the option to leave the program anytime we want or do 
they want to put back $85,000 a year for the first four years? Or look at spreading it 
out with $40,000 a year for eight years?  Dan said that we just need to know that if 
we want to get out of the lease before we have the $550,000 in reserve, we would 
either have to come up with the remaining amount or reduce the number of 
vehicles. 
 

Alderman Bloemker asked what Dan would recommend? 
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 21 July 21, 2020 

Dan said as a finance person he would prefer to do the $85,000 in the first four 
years. 
Alderman Atkins asked how much money we would be saving with the lease plan? 
 

Dan said that is not an easy question to answer.  He said that right now our 
replacement schedule is all over the place. He said that 44% of our vehicles are over 
10 years old and with this plan we would never have a vehicle over four years old. 
The number for this annual lease payment versus what we are doing right now is 
likely higher because we are not replacing five vehicles every year. With not 
replacing those vehicles on a regular basis the annual maintenance is increasing and 
the fuel efficiency is declining which is costing the City. 
 

Brandon stated that based on the make and model series of all the vehicles in the 
City’s fleet compared to other government entities the city is going to see a dramatic 
reduction in maintenance expenses and see a fairly healthy reduction in fuel 
expenses.  Their program shows an annual savings of approximately $49,000 
annually. 
 

Alderman Atkins said that savings could be put toward the seed money. 
 

Alderwoman Wilson asked if the insurance cost will go up with having newer 
vehicles? 
 

Dan that our insurance is based on the purchase value so we should not see a 
drastic increase. 
 

Alderman Bloemker asked if we could lease electric vehicles? 
 

Dan said that we are looking at the electric or eco-friendly vehicles for departments 
where they could be used.  Unfortunately, they do not have quite as good of a 
resale value and could end up hurting this fund a little bit. 
 

Nickie said that this is our fleet and our choice so we can tell Enterprise exactly what 
we want, and they would be able to get it for us.  It just may not pay out like the 
vehicles that they recommend. 
 

Alderman Bloemker said he would lean toward the fiscal conservative model at this 
time. 
 

Mayor Boley said that with the hybrids we would see fuel savings. 
 

Brandon said that the hybrids are typically more cost effective, and they offer more 
incentives for the hybrids. 
 

Mayor Boley suggested the hybrid not the electric. 
 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 22 

Dan said staff will have a recommendation for all of this for the budget discussion in 
August and also have a better idea on the numbers.  He said the plan is to bring an 
agreement with Enterprise to the Board in August. 
Nickie said that will be the next step, to have all of the information from Enterprise 
and be able to discuss it during the budget process.  She said that with this program 
you would want to pay attention to the manufactures timeline for placing the orders.  
Somewhere around mid-late summer is the best time to place the orders then you 
do not pay anything out until the vehicles are received. 
 
Brandon said that now is a perfect time to be in the front of the line for placing 
orders for the vehicles.  He said it does take time to get the vehicles made and due 
to COVID-19 production did get behind. 
 

6. Discussion of Assessment of Utility Late Fees 
Dan gave a brief history of the assessment of the utility late fees due to COVID-19.  
We had the emergency Ordinance in March to wave or suspend all utility late fees 
and not perform disconnections in March or April.  In May, the Board approved a 
Resolution to extend the date of the waiver through the end of June.  If the Board 
chooses not to extend the waiver further, staff will assess a late fee on July 22 and 
do service disconnections on the July 27.  The discussion is to see if the Board wants 
to return back to the normal billing practices or if they want to change the normal 
billing practices temporarily.  Dan said that at the end of his staff report he included 
some information on what some other cities are doing, and staff received 
confirmation today that the information is still accurate. Staff did receive some 
additional information from Parkville that they have started to assess late fees in 
June, but they are not going to perform disconnects until August. 
 

Mayor Boley and the Board requested to mail letters to residents with more than one 
month in arrears on May 22 and again on June 30.  The May 22 letters did have 
some positive results: 22 of the 105 customers that received the letter, paid their 
balance in full.  Another 26 made a payment but still owed some of their bill, 18 
made a payment but were still at least one month behind and 34 did not respond.  
On June 30, staff mailed 93 letters, the 18 and 34 customers who all received a 
letter in May plus 41 additional customers who fell more than one month behind.  
When staff assess late fees there are approximately 400 late fees assessed, when 
we assessed the late fees on June 22 there were 465 accounts so just a little bit 
higher than what we typically see. 
 

Dan asked for direction from the Board to either return to the normal billing 
practices, suspend the disconnection, or suspend both the late fee and the 
disconnection through a further date? 
 

Alderman Atkins said he likes the idea of staying with the way we are doing it now.  
Since Clay County is saying the virus is still very active and we are all still in 
quarantine, we need to take that into consideration.  He does like the idea of slowly 
getting back into the normal practices. 



  Regular Session 

 Page 23 July 21, 2020 

Alderman Bloemker said he agreed that we need to create a plan and return to 
some sort of normalcy.  He said in doing some research and taking a look at best 
practices he came across a presentation which referenced the use of CARE Act 
funding to use as a utility bill forgiveness and fee waiver related to those who have 
been recently unemployed due to COVID-19. He asked staff to do some research on 
this and bring that a proposal back to the Board when we review this again. 
 

Alderman Chevalier agreed with Alderman Bloemker and said if we could actually 
make it work, we could help those who have been affected by the pandemic. 
 

Mayor Boley requested that staff make phone calls to the residents that are behind 
to see, if we go forward with shut offs, if COVID-19 affected their ability to pay or if 
they need a payment plan.  He asked that staff to make sure those residents were 
aware of the bill and work with them. 
 

Mayor Boley asked the Board if they want to extend the date for shut offs? 
 

Alderman Ulledahl recommended extending it to August. 
 

Alderwoman Wilson recommended assessing the late fees in July and extending shut 
offs to August. 
 
Mayor Boley agreed with Alderwoman Wilson to assess the late fees in July and shut 
offs in August. 
 

All the Board agreed. 
 

Mayor Boley asked Scott Sullivan and John Reddoch if it would be possible to use 
CARES funds for helping utility customers? 
 

Scott said they would need time to research it. 
 

Mayor Boley asked if the City had any Ordinance that says we will not do shut offs if 
the temperature gets too high? 
 

Dan said that we only have one for in the winter and temperatures drop to low and 
we cannot open the meter pit. 
 

7. Adjourn 
Alderman Atkins moved to adjourn the Work Session.  Alderwoman Wilson seconded 
the motion. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Boley declared the Work Session 
adjourned at 6:32 p.m. 
 
__________________________                    _________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk                          Damien Boley, Mayor 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 24 

Board of Aldermen Minutes –  July 7, 2020 Regular Session 
 

  SMITHVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
REGULAR SESSION 

 
July 7, 2020    7:00 p.m.  

City Hall Council Chambers 
 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic this meeting was held via teleconference.     
    
Mayor, Aldermen and staff attended via Zoom meeting.  The meeting was 
streamed live on the city’s YouTube page and also linked to the city’s FaceBook 
page.  Attendance in person by members of the public was not permitted. 

 
1. Call to Order 

     Mayor Boley, present, called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.  A quorum of the 
Board was present via Zoom meeting: Steve Sarver, Marv Atkins, John Chevalier, 
Jeff Bloemker, Dan Ulledahl and Melissa Wilson.  Staff present via Zoom: Cynthia 
Wagner, Nickie Lee, Chuck Soules, Chief Jason Lockridge, Jack Hendrix, Dan 
Toleikis, Matt Denton and Linda Drummond.   
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance lead by Alderman Atkins 
 

3. Consent Agenda 
• Minutes 

o June 16, 2020 Board of Alderman 6:00 p.m. Regular Session Minutes 
o June 16, 2020 Board of Alderman Work Session Minutes 
o June 16, 2020 Board of Alderman 7:00 p.m. Regular Session Minutes 
o June 23, 2020 Board of Alderman Special Meeting Minutes 

 

No discussion. 
 

Alderman Bloemker moved to approve the consent agenda.  Alderman Chevalier 
seconded the motion. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  The Mayor declared the consent agenda 
approved. 
 

REPORTS FROM OFFICERS AND STANDING COMMITTEES 
  

4. Committee Reports 
Alderman Chevalier reported on the June 25 Parks and Recreation committee 
meeting.  They discussed the basketball court at Heritage Park and placing it where 
the existing old playground equipment is now.  They also discussed the possibility of 
Dog Park moving forward soon. 
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 25 July 21, 2020 

City Administrator Cynthia Wagner reported that she had not heard anything 
recently about the Dog Park but would contact Nicole Brown at Clay County.  She 
also said she believed approval from the Corps of Engineers is still in progress. 
    

5. City Administrator’s Report 
Cynthia highlighted items in the City Administrator’s report.  As of yesterday, we 
have received 15 applications for the Small Business CARES Grant. Applications close 
Friday.  
 

On July 21, staff will be bringing the touchless fixtures bid information back to the 
Board for action. On the August 4 agenda staff will bring forward bid information for 
action on the Wi-Fi for Heritage Park as well as the Council Room sound system.  
Staff has met with vendors who provided information to create specifications for 
both of these items. 
 

Included in the packet are photos from upgrades to the restrooms at Smith's Fork 
Campground. The shower houses and restrooms at Smith's Fork Campground 
reopened last Friday. Cynthia thanked Matt and the Parks and Recreation staff for all 
their work.   Later this week or early next week staff will begin renovations on the 
restrooms at Heritage Park.   
 

Also included in the packet is a picture of the renovation of the Council Room in City 
Hall.  Work is almost complete, the only things left for this initial phase are the 
ceiling tile installation this week and a walkthrough on the punch list.  The delivery 
of the dais is anticipated on July 16. 

 

ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 
 

6. Bill No. Bill No. 2861-20, Creation of CARES Act Stimulus Fund – 2nd 
Reading Alderman Bloemker moved to approve Bill No. 2861-20, to approve the 
creation of the CARES Act Stimulus Fund to account for the receipt of and 
expenditures from that allocation separate from any other monies.  2nd reading by 
title only.  Alderman Atkins seconded the motion. 
    
No discussion. 
 

Upon roll call vote via teleconference: 
Alderman Sarver – Aye, Alderwoman Wilson – Aye, Alderman Atkins – Aye, 
Alderman Ulledahl – Aye, Alderman Chevalier – Aye, Alderman Bloemker – Aye. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Boley declared Bill No. 2861-20 
approved. 
 

7. Bill No. 2862-20, Budget Amendment No. 2 – 2nd Reading  
Alderman Bloemker moved to approve Bill No. 2862-20, to amend the FY20 Budget 
to add $945,400 in budgeted revenue to the newly created CARES Act Stimulus 
Fund and to add $945,400 in budgeted expenditures for the necessary expenses 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 26 

incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the Coronavirus Disease 
2019 (COVID-19).  2nd reading by title only.  Alderman Sarver seconded the motion. 
 

No discussion. 
 

Upon roll call vote via teleconference: 
Alderman Bloemker – Aye, Alderman Chevalier – Aye, Alderman Ulledahl – Aye, 
Alderwoman Wilson – Aye, Alderman Sarver – Aye, Alderman Atkins – Aye. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Boley declared Bill No. 2862-20 
approved. 

 

8. Bill No. 2863-20, Annexation of 2412 NE 157th Terrace – 2nd Reading 
Alderman Bloemker moved to approve Bill No. 2863-20, to approve the annexation 
of 2412 NE 157th Terrace legally described as Lakeside Crossing 1st Plat, Lot 11.  
2nd reading by title only.  Alderman Atkins seconded the motion. 
 

No discussion. 
 

Upon roll call vote via teleconference: 
Alderwoman Wilson – Aye, Alderman Sarver – Aye, Alderman Atkins – Aye, 
Alderman Ulledahl – Aye, Alderman Bloemker – Aye, Alderman Chevalier – Aye. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Boley declared Bill No. 2863-20 
approved. 
 

9. Resolution 793, Reimbursement for Prior CARES Related Expenditures 
Alderman Sarver moved to approve Resolution 793, approving expenditures on 
CARES-related expenses for the months of March, April, and May 2020 and authorize 
reimbursement from the CARES fund.  Alderwoman Wilson seconded the motion. 
 

No discussion. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Boley declared Resolution 793 approved. 
 

10. Resolution 794, Addendum 3 of Authorization No. 79, for Streetscape 
Alderman Bloemker moved to approve Resolution 794, authorizing Addendum No. 3 
of Authorization No. 79 for the Downtown Streetscape for the East Streetscape in an 
amount not to exceed $15,120 for the redesign of the proposed eight-foot multi-use 
trail to a five-foot sidewalk between Smith Street and Liberty Road. Alderwoman 
Wilson seconded the motion. 
 

Public Comment: 
Leann Rick, 332 East Main Street, spoke to the Board about the project taking part 
of her yard.  She stated she was glad that it was changed to a five-foot sidewalk but 
asked that the Board consider taking the trail through Heritage Park instead of in 
front of her house.  She said she was concerned for the safety of people crossing 
the street there.   



  Regular Session 

 Page 27 July 21, 2020 

 

Carl Jones, 321 East Main Street, stated that the sidewalk in front of his house was 
adequate.  He asked the Board to consider taking the trail through Heritage Park.  
He explained that if the project included an eight-foot sidewalk it would have taken 
a mature tree from his yard and he would not have been happy.  He asked that in 
the future the City send out registered letters to notify the residents involved in 
project like this. 
 

Shelly Raszler, 322 East Main Street, stated that she had only recently moved into 
her home and did not know about the trail project.  She wants a small sidewalk 
because she would like to keep her yard.  She asked the Board to consider taking 
the sidewalk to the curb. 

  

Alderman Atkins said he saw that we took the eight-foot sidewalk down to five-foot 
and asked if we could take it down to three- or four-foot? 

 

Mayor Boley explained we went from eight-foot to five-foot because that is where 
the temporary easements are and five-foot keeps it in the right-of-way. 

 

Chuck explained that to be handicap assessable, a five-foot sidewalk is required. He 
recommended the five-foot sidewalk several months ago because it is the minimum 
residential standard sidewalk.   Five-foot sidewalks allow two people to walk side by 
side or one pass others without having to step off the sidewalk. Chuck explained the 
reason he does not recommend the sidewalk butting up to the curb is if a kid is 
riding a bike and accidentally falls.  There is also the issue with snowplows pushing 
the snow off the street onto the sidewalk and then it freezes making it really hard 
for residents to get out there and move it and open the sidewalk back up.  He said it 
is more comfortable if pedestrians are not walking directly next to traffic. 
 

Alderman Bloemker asked if it was a three-foot distance between the curb and the 
sidewalk? 
 

Chuck said that was correct.  The City owns 13-feet of right-of-way and going with 
the five-foot sidewalk three-foot from the curb only takes eight-foot of the yards.  
Instead of the eight-foot sidewalk four-foot from the curb that would have taken 12-
foot of their yards.  Chuck explained that the yards are smaller on that side of Main 
Street and we are trying to leave those residents as much of their yard as possible. 
 

Alderman Bloemker said he was concerned with going from the eight-foot trail 
sidewalk down to the five-foot trail sidewalk in that short of an area. 
 

Mayor Boley explained that the entire north side will be five-foot, and it will go to 
eight-foot once you cross Liberty Street.  The trail will be consistent on the south 
side all the way to the bridge and on out to the dam. The construction of the trail 
from Heritage Park to Litton Way is all part of the ballot language. 
 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 28 

Chuck said that it will be eight-foot in front of Heritage Park because there will be 
more activity in that area. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Boley declared Resolution 794 approved. 
 

11. Resolution 795, Sports League Contract 
Alderman Bloemker moved to approve Resolution 795, authorizing and directing the 
Mayor to enter into an agreement with the Smithville Warrior Youth Football Club for 
the use of city park land for the 2020 season.  Alderwoman Wilson seconded the 
motion. 
 

 No discussion. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Boley declared Resolution 795 approved. 
 

12. Resolution 796, Rescinding Resolution 790, Audit Services 
Alderman Bloemker moved to approve Resolution 796, to rescind Resolution 790, for 
audit services and approve Resolution 796, for audit services with the correct dates.  
Alderman Ulledahl seconded the motion. 
 

 No discussion. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Boley declared Resolution 796 approved. 
 

13. Resolution 797, Special Event Permit, Smithville Lake Festival 
Alderman Bloemker moved to approve Resolution 797, to approve a Special Event 
Permit to the Smithville Festival Committee (Chairman, Barbara Lamb) for Lakefest, 
to be held at Courtyard Park August 28, 29 and 30, 2020.  Alderman Chevalier 
seconded the motion. 

  

 No discussion. 
 

 Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Boley declared Resolution 797 approved 
 

14. Resolution 798, Temporary Liquor License 
Alderman Bloemker moved to approve Resolution 798, to approve a Temporary 
Liquor License to Barbara Lamb, doing business as Smithville Festival Committee, to 
be part of a Special Event being held at the Courtyard Park on August 28, 29 and 
30, 2020.  Alderwoman Wilson the motion. 
 

 No discussion. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Boley declared Resolution 798 approved. 
 

OTHER MATTERS BEFORE THE BOARD 
   

15. Public Comment 
None 



  Regular Session 

 Page 29 July 21, 2020 

 

16. Appointments 
• Finance Committee 

 Mayor Boley nominated Alderwoman Wilson and Alderman Sarver. 
  

 By roll call vote.       Alderwoman Wilson - Abstained 
     Alderman Sarver - Abstained    
                       Alderman Atkins – Aye 
     Alderman Bloemker - Aye 
     Alderman Chevalier – Aye 
      Alderman Ulledahl - Aye 
 

Ayes – 4, Noes – 0, Abstained – 2, motion carries.  The Mayor declared 
Alderwoman Wilson and Alderman Sarver Finance Committee Representatives. 

 

• Fire District Liaison Committee 
Mayor Boley nominated Alderman Atkins and Alderman Ulledahl. 

  

 By roll call vote.               Alderman Ulledahl – Abstained 
     Alderman Chevalier - Aye 
     Alderman Bloemker – Aye 
     Alderman Wilson – Aye 
     Alderman Sarver – Aye 
     Alderman Atkins - Abstained 
           

Ayes – 4, Noes – 0, Abstained – 2, motion carries.  The Mayor declared Alderman 
Atkins and Alderman Ulledahl Fire District Liaison Committee Representatives. 
 

• School District Liaison Committee 
 Mayor Boley nominated Alderman Bloemker and Alderman Chevalier. 

 
By roll call vote.        Alderman Atkins - Aye 
     Alderman Sarver – Aye     
              Alderwoman Wilson – Aye 
     Alderman Ulledahl – Aye 
      Alderman Chevalier - Abstained 
      Alderman Bloemker - Abstained 
 

Ayes – 4, Noes – 0, Abstained – 2, motion carries.  The Mayor declared Alderman 
Bloemker the School District Liaison Committee Representative. 
 

• NRAD Liaison Committee  
 Mayor Boley nominated Alderman Atkins and Alderman Ulledahl. 
  

 By roll call vote.      Alderman Sarver - Aye 
     Alderman Atkins – Abstained 
     Alderwoman Wilson – Aye 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 30 

     Alderman Chevalier – Aye 
     Alderman Ulledahl– Abstained 
     Alderman Bloemker – Aye 
           

 Ayes – 4, Noes – 0, Abstained – 2, motion carries.  The Mayor declared Alderman 
 Atkins and Alderman Ulledahl the Fire District Liaison Committee Representative. 

 

17. New Business from the Floor 
 Mayor Boley reminded the Board he would be out of town for the July 21 meeting. 
 

18. Adjourn 
 Alderman Sarver moved to adjourn.  Alderman Ulledahl seconded the motion. 

              

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries via teleconference. Mayor Boley declared the 
regular session adjourned at 7:34 p.m. 
 
 
                                                                                         
_________________________         __________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk          Damien Boley, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 31 July 21, 2020 

Finance Report –  June 2020 
 

 

(Full Financial Report – June 2020) 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/FinanceReport-June2020agenda11736134071620-103619AMb.pdf


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 32 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

   
 

City Administrator’s Report 
 

July 16, 2020 
 

Follow Up – Board Question at July 7 Work Session 
At the July 7 work session, Alderwoman Wilson requested that staff reach out to Clay 
County in order to obtain historical information on property tax collection rates. This 
week, staff requested information from the county dating back to 2000. Clay County 
confirmed they could provide the information, but indicated that it could take some time 
to compile and also advised that they aren’t sure they can go back as far as 2000. 
 
Regarding unpaid real estate property taxes, Clay County cannot collect on real estate 
taxes that are more than four years delinquent. Therefore, properties that are two 
years delinquent usually enter the real estate tax sale.  However, with COVID-19, they 
are considering changes to this policy for this year. Clay County uses an attorney to 
attempt to collect on delinquent personal property tax payments. 
 
Staff will update the Board upon receiving more information from Clay County. 
 
Water Line Break – July 15, 2020 
As you are aware, staff spent most of Wednesday addressing water line issues.  Early 
that morning, low pressure in Greyhawk indicated a potential break.  Upon inspection of 
the area, it was determined there was no break in this area, however water levels in 
the tower serving the area continued to go down, causing low pressure.  Greyhawk 
never lost serivce, only experienced reduced pressure. 
 
After several hours of significant rainfall, staff was able to identify the source of the 
break which was causing water loss.  Staff walked a signficiant area and turned off 
several valves, reducing water pressure to various areas (including the Diamond Crest 
and Harbor Lakeneighborhoods).  The break was in a creekbed, making it difficult and 



  Regular Session 

 Page 33 July 21, 2020 

time consuming to identify with recent stormwater runoff.  Below are photos of Public 
Works Inspector Norm Wells working to identify the exact location of the break. 
 
Once the location was identified, staff worked to make the repairs.  Service was 
restored to Diamond Creek and Harbor Lake neighborhoods around 9:15.  Samples of 
water have been sent to the testing laboratory we utilize in Kansas City and we have 
issued a precautionary boil order for these two neighborhhods until we have results of 
those samples.   
 

  
 
Comprehensive Plan Update 
As you are aware, the Comprehensive Plan Update process was paused and 
reorganizaed due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  The consultant team has been 
synthesizing community input from the visioning process and survey information 
obtained earlier this year in order to understand community aspirations and associated 
planning implications.  This includes concept plans for proposed new Smithville 
character areas.  We are now ready for the Task Forces to resume review and 
discussion.  In order to comply with CCPHC and CDC guidelines, the meetings will be 
slightly different than those planned in March.  The consultant team will make their 
presentations and discuss commumnity input from a remote, digital forum.  Participants 
will be able to join the discussion virutally or in person at the Smithville High School 
Performing Arts Center.   
 
Task Force meetings are scheduled for 4:00 to 6:00 p.m. on the following dates: 
  
 Housing and Neighborhood Options    Monday, July 27 
 Business and Economic Devleopment   Tuesday, July 28 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 34 

 Recreation and Connectivity    Wednesday, July 29 
 Small Town Feel and Sense of Community Thursday, July 30  
 
Registration and other information may be found at https://lab.future-iq.com/city-of-
smithville-comprehensive-planning-process-2020/ 
 
Influent Pump Station – Closeout Report 
Attached is a report from Public Works Director Chuck Soules outlining final closeout of 
this project.   
 
Smith’s Fork Campground Rental Informaton 
Rentals of camp sites for the time period of June 1 through the end of the week 
including the Fourth of July are up from both 2018 and 2019 as outlined below.  Of 
note, we have turned away 55 requests for upgraded (50 amp) sites.  As part of budget 
review, we will be exploring and providing recommendations related to campsite 
upgrades. 
 

Total rentals (June 1 to end of second weekend in July) 
2020:     1,289 
2019:     1,275 
2019:     1,162 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://lab.future-iq.com/city-of-smithville-comprehensive-planning-process-2020/
https://lab.future-iq.com/city-of-smithville-comprehensive-planning-process-2020/


  Regular Session 

 Page 35 July 21, 2020 

 

 
  

Date: July 15, 2020 

To: Cynthia Wagner, City Administrator 

From Charles Soules, Director of PW 

Subject: 
Final Closeout Report 
Influent Pump Station 

 

At the Board of Alderman meeting on May 1, 2018 project 18-06 Base Bid A was 
awarded to Foley Company (Enerfab) in an amount of $4,586,493. Base Bid A included 
a new influent pump station and excess flow holding tank at the wastewater treatment 
plant. 
 

The improvements were substantially complete in September of 2019 and the plant and 
new pump station brought on line in October. In January 2020 staff noticed that the 
influent pumps were running slower and a couple pumps shut down in February. By 
specification the pumps are supposed to pass a 4-inch sphere but not unlike the drain 
in a sink small pieces of rags, wipes, etc. were wrapping around the pump impellers 
and accumulating until the pump could not run and shut down. The City had the pumps 
pulled and unclogged. The wet well was temporarily bypassed to allow the wet well to 
be cleaned of accumulated debris. The City incurred $28,415.24 in expenses for this 
work. 
 

In discussions with Enerfab, HDR and the pump manufacturer it was decided to install a 
piece of equipment called a “Deragger”. The Deragger basically senses when the pumps 
are pulling more amps and then turns the pump off and reverses the impeller 
discarding the blockage. This is completed several times until the blockage is passed 
through. The Deragger has been installed for two months and is keeping the pumps 
from clogging and shutting down. 

 

The additional cost for this equipment for all three pumps is $18,722.  
HDR and Enerfab have agreed to split the costs the City incurred for unplugging the 
pumps and cleaning out the wet well ($28,415.24). 
 

The final construction cost: 
 BID  $4,586,493 
 CO 1  $    23,050 Change of pump manufacturer requested by the City 
 CO 2          ($     5,760.16)  
Total   $4,603,782.84 
 

All work is now completed and accepted. Final payment will be made. The City has a 
one-year maintenance bond/warranty period. 

STAFF REPORT 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 36 

ZONING 2412 NE 157TH TERRACE 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: July 21, 2020 Department: Development 

Agenda Item: Bill No. 2864-20, Zoning 2412 NE 157th Terrace 

Summary: 

Approving this ordinance would set the initial zoning on this property to R-1B.  

Purpose: 

The property was annexed on July 7 by Ordinance 3065-20 and the initial zoning must 
be set.  A public hearing before the Planning Commission was held on July 14, 2020 
for setting the initial zoning on the property.  The Planning Commission recommended 
to set the zoning as R-1B, to match the adjacent zoning classifications.   
 
The property is a single-family residential home in the Lakeside Crossing subdivision.  
It was one of 11 lots not inside the city limits, but with the annexation last meeting, 
there are now only 10.  

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan: Complies 

Economic Development Plan: n/a 

Parks Master Plan: n/a 

Strategic Plan: Complies 

Capital Improvement Plan: n/a 

Budget: n/a 

Legislative History: 

Annexed on July 7, 2020 via Ord. 3065-20 

Suggested Action: 

A motion to approve Bill No. 2864-20 for First Reading by Title Only to set the initial 
zoning of 2412 NE 157th Terrace. 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

 Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other: Findings of Fact 



  Regular Session 

 Page 37 July 21, 2020 

FINDING OF FACTS AND  
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

 
 
Applicant:  Judith Whaley   
 
Land Use Proposed: R-1B 
 
Zoning:  County Single Family 
 
Property Location: 2412 NE 157th Ter. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 400.560(C) of the Smithville Code, the Planning 
Commission does hereby make the following findings of fact based upon the testimony and 
evidence presented in a public hearing of the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of 
Smithville, held on July 14, 2020, and presents these findings to the Board of Aldermen, with 
its’ recommendations on the application. 
 
Finding of Facts 
 
1. Character of the neighborhood. 

The surrounding area is single family residential housing in a standard   
 subdivision. 
 
2. Consistency with the City's Comprehensive Plan and ordinances. 

The existing Comprehensive Plan was approved on October 6, 2005 and calls for low 
density housing. It complies with the plan.  

 
3. Adequacy of public utilities and other needed public services. 
 The lot is in a fully completed subdivision with all utilities and public services.  
 
4. Suitability of the uses to which the property has been restricted under its existing 

zoning. 
 The current use is single family residential formerly outside the city limits.  
 
5. Length of time the property has remained vacant as zoned. 
 The property was constructed in the county but had never previously annexed while the 

bulk of the lots in the subdivision were annexed over 15 years ago.   
 
6. Compatibility of the proposed district classification with nearby properties. 
 The proposed district matches the adjacent existing uses. 
 
7. The extent to which the zoning amendment may detrimentally affect nearby property. 
 No detriment is anticipated. 
  
8. Whether the proposed amendment provides a disproportionately great loss to the 

individual landowners nearby relative to the public gain. 
 No loss to landowners is expected. 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 38 

  
9. That in rendering this Finding of Fact, testimony at the public hearing on July 14, 2020, 

has been taken into consideration as well as the documents provided. 
 
Recommendation of the Planning Commission 
 
Based on the foregoing findings of fact, we conclude that: 
 
A. This application and the Zoning of this property from County Single Family Residential to 

R-1B is governed by Section 400.620 of the zoning ordinance of Smithville, Missouri. 
 
B. The proposed zoning is compatible with the factors set out in Section 400.560(C) of the 

zoning ordinance. 
 
C. The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Smithville, Missouri recommends 

approval of zoning the property to R-1B. 
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 39 July 21, 2020 

BILL NO.  2864-20  ORDINANCE NO.  ________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS OR DISTRICTS OF 
CERTAIN LANDS LOCATED IN THE CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI. 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Smithville received an application for annexation on May 7, 2020 
for property located at 2412 NE 157th Terrace; and 
 

WHEREAS, after the property was annexed, the City is required to designate the initial 
zoning of newly annexed property, so a Public Hearing was conducted before the Planning 
Commission on July 14, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission presented its’ findings to the Board of Aldermen and 
recommended approval of the initial zoning for the property as R-1B. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY 
OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI, THAT; 
 

Section 1. Having received a recommendation from the Planning Commission, and 
proper notice having been given and public hearing held as provided by law, and under the 
authority of and subject to the provisions of the zoning ordinances of the City of Smithville, 
Missouri, by a majority board vote, the zoning classification(s) or district(s) of the lands 
legally described hereby are changed as follows: 
 

The property legally described as:  Lot 11, Lakeside Crossing 1st Plat, a subdivision in Clay 
County Missouri 
 

is hereby set as R-1B.   
 

Section 2.  Upon the taking effect of this ordinance, the above zoning changes shall be 
entered and shown upon the “Official Zoning Map” previously adopted and said Official 
Zoning Map is hereby reincorporated as a part of the zoning ordinance as amended. 
 

Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after the 
approval. 
 

PASSED THIS __________ DAY OF __________, 20_____ 
 
 

 

_________________________________ 

Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

First Reading:    / / 
Second Reading  / / 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 40 

Exhibit A 
 

 
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 41 July 21, 2020 

HAZARDOUS MITIGATION PLAN 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: 07/21/2020 Department: Administration 

Agenda Item: 
Resolution No. 799, to Adopt the 2020 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard 
Mitigation Plan for Cass, Clay, Jackson, Platte and Ray counties 

Summary: 

Approval of this item will adopt the 2020 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan for 
Cass, Clay, Jackson, Platte and Ray counties as required by 44 CFT Part 201.  This is a 
county wide plan required by FEMA. 

Purpose:  

Adopting this plan will comply with FEMA requirements, and identifies the City of 
Smithville’s participation in the planning process as it relates to potential disasters.  The 
entire plan can be found here: 
http://marc2.org/assets/emergency/2020_REGIONAL_HAZARD_MITIGATION_PLAN.pdf 

 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan:  NA 

Economic Development Plan: NA 

Parks Master Plan:  NA 

Strategic Plan:  
Goal 5: Developing policies that govern the city. 
Goal 6: Strengthening the City’s position with 
other government entities 

Capital Improvement Plan:  NA 

Budget:  NA 

Legislative History:  

This plan is reviewed and updated every 5 years. 

Suggested Action: 

A motion to approve Resolution No. 799 and adopt the 2020 Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard 
Mitigation Plan for Cass, Clay, Jackson, Platte and Ray counties. 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

  Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other:  

 

 

http://marc2.org/assets/emergency/2020_REGIONAL_HAZARD_MITIGATION_PLAN.pdf


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 42 

RESOLUTION 799 
 
RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE REGIONAL MULTI-HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Smithville recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to 
people and property within the City of Smithville; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Smithville has participated in the preparation of a multi-
jurisdictional local hazard mitigation plan, hereby known as the 2020 Multi-Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan for Cass, Clay, Jackson, Platte and Ray counties, hereafter 
referred to as the Plan,  in accordance with the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Plan identifies mitigation goals and actions to reduce or eliminate long-
term risk to people and property in the City of Smithville from the impacts of future 
hazards and disasters; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Smithville recognizes that land use and other policies have a 
major impact on whether people and property are exposed to natural hazards, the City 
of Smithville will endeavor to integrate the Plan into the comprehensive and/or strategic 
planning process; and 
 
WHEREAS. adoption by the City of Smithville demonstrates their commitment to 
hazard mitigation and achieving the goals outlined in the Plan and affirms that the Plan 
will be updated no less than every five years; and  
 
WHEREAS, the final draft plan prepared by the Mid-America Regional Council has been 
reviewed by SEMA and is expected to be approved by FEMA. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Smithville, in the State of 
Missouri, the Mayor Pro-Tem and Board of Alderman adopts the final draft Plan. 
 
ADOPTED this 21st day of July 2020 at the meeting of the Smithville Board of Aldermen. 
 

 
_________________________ 
Jeff Bloemker, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 
 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 43 July 21, 2020 

BID AWARD - EAST MAIN STREET TRAIL 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: July 21, 2020 Department: Public Works 

Agenda Item: Resolution 800 – Bid Award – Main Street Trail 

Summary: 

 

Bids were received and publicly opened for Project No. 51-B, E. Main Street Trail 
Project on June 30, 2020. Nine Bids were received with Amino Brothers submitting 
the most responsive bid at a cost of: 
                          Subtotal Base Bid   $1,183,426.45 
                          Subtotal Add Alt 1      $34,432.90 
                          Subtotal Add Alt 2      $79,926.75 
Total Bid                                         $1,297,786.10 
 
The project is generally described as: construction of approximately 7,360 square 
yards of concrete trail and associated ADA ramps, 1,415 linear feet of curb and 
gutter, 1,145 linear feet of 12-inch through 48-inch storm sewer, 15 storm 
structures, site restoration including asphalt surfacing, and all associated 
appurtenances. Side roads and entrances will be replaced, and trailhead amenities 
installed. 
 
Alternate 1 included a rock blanket for erosion control of a steep embankment. 
Alternate 2 is the parking area at the new playground. 
 
During the Main Street Waterline installation, four crossroad pipes were found to be 
collapsed / deteriorated beyond repair and were added to the base bid, through an 
addendum, to be replaced.  
 
One easement remains to be secured. Since this project has some Federal Funding, 
property acquisition must follow the requirements of the Uniform Act in which, if 
requested, the owner is entitled to an appraisal and compensation. We are currently 
working on the appraisal and hope to have this issue resolved in the next couple 
weeks. Pending State and Federal Highway review of our documents, a notice to 
proceed with construction will be issued. 
 
Funding for the trail project is included in the CIP Fund with $242,500 being 
reimbursed from the Recreational Trails Program (RTP) grant. The parking lot for 
the new playground is included in the 2020 General fund Budget and $44,094.72 
will be paid from the Transportation Sales Tax Fund for the crossroad pipes that 
need to be replaced. 
 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 44 

Staff is also recommending the Board authorize a $50,000 (approximately 5%) 
contingency/ force account for field items that may be encountered and need to be 
resolved. This authorization would allow for quantity overruns and any adjustments 
to the plans necessary to complete the project. 
 
Attached is the Bid Tab, Engineers Recommendation, pictures of the crossroad pipes 
that need to be replaced and parking lot layout. 

Purpose:  
 

To award Bid# 20-07 to Amino Brothers Co., Inc according to policy in an amount of 
$1,297,786.10 and authorize a contingency/ force account in an amount of $50,000. 
 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan:  Promotes pedestrian access 

Economic Development Plan:   N/A 

Parks Master Plan:  
Improvement for parking and access to park 
facilities 

Strategic Plan:  Promotes healthy lifestyles 

Capital Improvement Plan:  Included in 2020 CIP 

Budget:  
Included in the 2020 CIP and General Fund 
Budgets 

Legislative History: 

N/A 

Suggested Action: 

Motion to approve Resolution 800 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

  Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other: 

Recommendation Bid 
Tabulation 

Playground Parking 
Lot Layout 

Photos of Cross Road 
Pipes 

 

 

 

https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/Res800EastMainStreetTrail-BidTaagenda11736134071620-122008PMd.pdf
https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/Res800EastMainStreetTrail-BidTaagenda11736134071620-122008PMd.pdf
https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/Res800MainStreetTrail-ParkingLotagenda11736134071620-112246AMd.pdf
https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/Res800MainStreetTrail-ParkingLotagenda11736134071620-112246AMd.pdf


  Regular Session 

 Page 45 July 21, 2020 

RESOLUTION 800 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A BID/CONTRACT IN RESPONSE TO BID NO. 20-
07 TO AMINO BROTHERS CO., INC IN AN AMOUNT OF $1,297,786.10 FOR 
THE MAIN STREET TRAIL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget allocated funds for the Main Street Trail 
Improvement; and 
 
WHEREAS, city staff has conducted a bid process as outlined in the City Purchasing 
Policy; and 
 
WHEREAS, after a bid process, the engineers and staff have made a recommendation 
for accepting the lowest and best bid received as being the most advantageous to the 
City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI: 
 
THAT Bid No. 20-07 is hereby awarded to Amino Brothers Co., Inc and the Mayor is 
hereby authorized to execute an agreement in an amount not to exceed $1,297,786.10 
and approve a force account contingency in an amount of $50,000 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor 
Pro-Tem of the City of Smithville, Missouri, the 21st day of July 2020. 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
Jeff Bloemker, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 

 
 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 46 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 47 July 21, 2020 

  

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 48 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 49 July 21, 2020 

 

 

 

(Bid Tab & Recommendation) 
 

https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/Res800EastMainStreetTrail-BidTaagenda11736134071620-122008PMd.pdf


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 50 

Parking Lot Layout 
 

 

 

(Parking Lot Layout) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/Res800MainStreetTrail-ParkingLotagenda11736134071620-112246AMd.pdf


  Regular Session 

 Page 51 July 21, 2020 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 52 

ASSESSMENT OF UTILITY LATE FEES 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: July 21, 2020 Department: Finance, Utilities 

Agenda Item: 
Resolution 801, Reinstatement of the Application of Delinquent 
Charges and Temporary Waiver of Discontinuation of Water Service 

Summary: 

Approval will reinstate late fee assessment and continue suspension of water shut-offs 
due to non-payment of utility bills through July 31. 

Purpose: 

According to Sections 705.060 and 705.120 of the Code of Ordinances, along with the 
Utility Billing Policy: 
 

• A 10% late fee is assessed on all unpaid utility account balances on the first 
business day following the 21st of each month. 

• Utility billing accounts in arrears more than $75.00 on the first business day 
following the 26th of each month are subject to disconnection of water service. 
Each account disconnected is assessed a $50.00 reconnection fee. 

 
Ordinance 3058-20 was approved March 24, 2020 providing the Mayor the authority to 
take emergency action in response to COVID-19. Due to the fact that the first step in 
prevention of the COVID-19 virus involves regular and frequent handwashing, and as 
allowed by Ordinance 3058-20, the assessment of late fees that typically would have 
been applied on March 23 and April 22 were waived, and service disconnections due to 
nonpayment that would have been performed on March 30 and April 27 were not 
performed.  
 
After discussion with the Board at a Work Session, Resolution 788 was approved May 
12, 2020, suspending late fee assessments and service disconnections through June 30. 
The assessment of late fees that typically would have been applied on May 22 and June 
22 were waived, and service disconnections due to nonpayment that would have been 
performed on May 28 and June 29 were not performed.  
 
The Board discussed options for continuing to waive late fee assessment and water 
shut-offs due to non-payment of utility bills at the Work Session on July 7, 2020. 
Direction from the Board was to reinstate the 10% late fee charge, which is 
anticipated to be assessed on all amounts due on July 22, but to extend the 
suspension of service disconnections through July 31. 
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 53 July 21, 2020 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan: N/A 

Economic Development Plan: N/A 

Parks Master Plan: N/A 

Strategic Plan: N/A 

Capital Improvement Plan: N/A 

Budget: Decrease in revenue receivable 

Legislative History: 

N/A 

Suggested Action: 

Motion to approve Resolution 801 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

 Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes Other: 
Ord. 3058-20,  

Resolution 788  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 54 

 
RESOLUTION 801 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE REINSTATEMENT OF THE APPLICATION OF 
DELINQUENT CHARGES AND CONTINUED SUSPENSION OF 
DISCONTINUANCE OF WATER SERVICE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 705.060 of the Code of Ordinances allows for the application of 
delinquent charges to unpaid utility account balances as set forth in the Schedule of 
Fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 705.120 of the Code of Ordinances allows for the discontinuance of 
water service due to non-payment of utility bills due and owing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City approved Ordinance No. 3058-20 adopting a policy and procedure 
for emergency preparedness and emergencies in Smithville in response to the COVID-
19 pandemic; and 
 
WHEREAS, under that Ordinance, application of delinquent charges on unpaid 
utility account balances were waived and discontinuance of water service due to 
non-payment of utility bills due and owing was not performed through April 30, 2020; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, emergency powers provided under Ordinance No. 3058-20 then 

terminated; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City approved Resolution 788 temporarily waiving the application of 
delinquent charges and discontinuance of water service through June 30, 2020; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen has directed the reinstatement of the application of 
delinquent charges beginning July 22, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen has directed the temporary waiver of 
discontinuance of water service be extended through July 31, 2020. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1)   Application of delinquent charges on unpaid utility account balances will be 
reinstated beginning July 22, 2020. 

 
2) The temporary waiver of discontinuance of water service due to non-payment 

of utility bills due and owing will be extended through July 31, 2020. 
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 55 July 21, 2020 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor 
Pro-Tem of the City of Smithville, Missouri, the 21st day of July 2020. 

 
 
 

____________________________ 
Jeff Bloemker, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 56 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 57 July 21, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 58 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 59 July 21, 2020 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 60 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 61 July 21, 2020 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 62 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 63 July 21, 2020 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 64 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 65 July 21, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 66 

NEHEMIAH FESTIVAL 2020 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: 7-21-2020 Department: Parks and Recreation 

Agenda Item: Resolution 802 - Nehemiah Festival 

Summary:  

David Lin has requested the exclusive use of Smith’s Fork Park for the annual 
Nehemiah Festival hosted by Grace Community Church.  The event has been held 
for the past fourteen years at Smith’s Fork, with a similar exclusive agreement. 
Last year’s attendance was estimated at 3,000.  Staff has been in discussions with 
Mr. Lin regarding Clay County Public Health Center (CCPHC) requirements relating 
to COVID-19 and Mr. Lin has indicated he continues to monitor CCPHC directives 
and it remains to be seen if the 2020 event will be held.  Mr. Lin wishes to enter 
into this agreement in anticipation of the event occurring under CCPHC guidelines. 

 
Mr. Lin has requested rental of the entire campground at a 29.89% rate of 
occupancy.  This rate is the average rate for 2019. The estimated revenue to the City 
would be: Two Thousand Six Hundred and Four Dollars and Ninety-One Cents 
($2,604.91) (29.89% of 83 camp sites X $35 per day for 3 days). Fifty percent (50%) 
payable prior to September 9, 2020 and the remainder due on or before September 
28, 2020. This is a change from prior charges, which were based on higher occupancy 
and resulted in approximately $1,112.21 more in revenue to the city. 
 
In addition to the base amount, Nehemiah Festival will also pay two dollars for each 
primitive campsite used and $50 per shelter per day.  
 
 Purpose:  

City staff met with representatives from Grace Community Church and agreed on 
terms of the contracts that are equitable to all parties involved for use of Smith’s 
Fork Campground and City Park Land for Nehemiah Festival. 

Impact 

Comprehensive Plan: None 

Economic Development Plan: None 

Parks Master Plan: None 

Strategic Plan: None 

Capital Improvement Plan:  None 



  Regular Session 

 Page 67 July 21, 2020 

Budget:   Revenue for the Parks Department for use of 
City Park Land. 

Legislative History: 

 

Suggested Action: 

 Motion to approve Resolution 802 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

 Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 68 

RESOLUTION 802 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR PRO TEM TO 
EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH GRACE COMMUNITY CHURCH FOR USE OF 
SMITH’S FORK PARK TO HOST A MUSIC FESTIVAL. 
 
WHEREAS, Grace Community Church approached the City requesting use of Smith’s 
Fork Park on September 18, 19 & 20, 2020 to host a music festival; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Smithville Board of Aldermen have approved the exclusive use of 
Smith’s Fork Park to Grace Community Church for the music festival; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and the Church have negotiated a contract; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI: 
 
THAT:  The Mayor Pro-Tem is hereby authorized and directed to execute an agreement 

with Grace Community Church for the purpose previously described. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor Pro-Tem and Board of Aldermen this 21st day 
of July 2020. 
 
 
_________________________ 
Jeff Bloemker, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Linda Drummond  
City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 69 July 21, 2020 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 70 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 71 July 21, 2020 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 72 

CITY HALL IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT ADDENDUM 

 City of Smithville 

Meeting Date: July 21, 2020 Department: 
Administration, Elected 
Officials 

Agenda Item: 
Resolution 803 – Addendum No. 1 to the City Hall Improvements 
Contract 

Summary: 

The FY20 Budget includes $100,000 in the General Fund for City Hall Improvements.  
 
The Board awarded the City Hall Improvements project to Bruner Contracting Co., LLC 
on May 12, 2020 in an amount not to exceed $95,747. (Resolution 780 attached). This 
amount included no contingency or provisional amount for any changes in the project.  
 
During construction, a few small changes to the project were made that have a 
financial impact:  

• The original plans called for new rubber baseboard along the new corridor wall, 
but the existing wood baseboard and wood door trim would remain. To match 
the new wall, staff, the contractor, and architect recommended to replace the 
wood baseboard trim with rubber base (1, below), and to replace the door trim 
with trim similar to the trim around the new corridor doors (2). 

• The original plans called for crown molding along the ceiling line in the Council 
Chambers. After installation of the drop ceiling, staff, the contractor, and 
architect felt the additional crown molding was not necessary (3). 

• The original plans called for only one set of double doors to be installed from 
the Council Chambers to the new corridor on the northeast corner of the 
Council Chambers. For balance in the room, staff, the contractor, and architect 
recommended the installation of a second set of double doors be installed from 
the Council Chambers to the new corridor on the northwest corner of the 
Council Chambers (4).  

• The original plans called for the exterior door from the Council Chambers and 
the two window frames in the south wall of the Council Chambers to remain as 
they were. To match the painted wall, staff, the contractor, and architect 
recommended to paint the door and windows to match (5). 

 
Addendum No. 1 presents the following changes to the project: 

1. Installation of rubber base in corridor - $260 
2. Removal of existing trim and installation of new trim in corridor - $1,032 
3. Removal of not installing crown molding in Council Chambers – ($610) 
4. Purchase and installation of second set of double doors, frame, and hardware in 

Council Chambers - $3,936. 



  Regular Session 

 Page 73 July 21, 2020 

5. Painting of exit door and two window frames - $550. 
TOTAL of Addendum No. 1 = $5,168. 

 
Addendum No. 1 would bring the total project cost to $100,915. 
 
Staff recommends the approval of Addendum No. 1 to the contract with Bruner 
Contracting Co., LLC for an additional amount of $5,168. 

Purpose:  

To approve Addendum No. 1 to the contract with Bruner Contracting Company, LLC in 
an additional amount of $5,168. 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan:  N/A 

Economic Development Plan:   N/A 

Parks Master Plan:  N/A 

Strategic Plan:  N/A 

Capital Improvement Plan:  N/A 

Budget:  Included in the FY20 General Fund Budget 

Legislative History: 

 

Suggested Action: 

Motion to approve Resolution 803 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

  Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other: 
Resolution 780, 
Addendum No. 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 74 

 
RESOLUTION 803 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING ADDENDUM NO. 1 TO THE CONTRACT WITH 
BRUNER CONTRACTING COMPANY, LLC FOR THE CITY HALL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT. 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget allocates funds for the City Hall Improvements 
project; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff has conducted a bid process as outlined in the City Purchasing Policy; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Bid No. 20-05 was awarded to Bruner Contracting Company, LLC and the 
Mayor executed Resolution 780 on May 12, 2020 for an amount not to exceed $95,747. 
 
WHEREAS, Bruner Contracting Company, LLC has submitted Addendum No. 1 for an 
additional $5,168 as a result of on-site discussions and/or changes made to contract 
documents; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff makes the recommendation of the acceptance of Addendum No. 1. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI: 
 
THAT the contract with Bruner Contracting Company, LLC, for City Hall Improvements 
be amended and the Mayor Pro-Tem is hereby authorized to execute Addendum No. 1 
for an additional amount of $5,168.00. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor 
Pro-Tem of the City of Smithville, Missouri, the 21st of July 2020. 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
Jeff Bloemker, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 

 
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 75 July 21, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 76 

  



  Regular Session 

 Page 77 July 21, 2020 

CARES ACT FUNDING – AWARD SMALL BUSINESS GRANTS 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: July 21, 2020 Department: Administration 

Agenda Item: Res. No. 804 – Awarding CARES Small Business Grants 

Summary: 

This Resolution would authorize distribution of the small business grants as 
recommended by Clay County EDC and reviewed by the Board of Aldermen. 

Purpose: 

A grant program for small businesses to reimburse the costs of business interruption 
caused by required closures relating to COVID-19 is an authorized expenditure in the 
CARES Act.  On June 23, the Board of Aldermen approved an MOU with the Clay 
County EDC (CCEDC) to administer the program and accept applications between 
June 24 and July 10, 2020 to issue up to $100,000 in total grant funds to Smithville 
small businesses. Small businesses applied for a grant up to $5,000 each to 
reimburse business expenses related to COVID-19. The program details are attached. 
 
CCEDC received 21 applications, and staff recommends funding all 21 and increasing 
the allocation to $105,000. 
 
Below is a list of recommended awards at $5,000 each.  Attached are the applications 
from each business. CCEDC reviewed the applicant’s financial information and made 
recommendations based on their financial review and a demonstrated business 
interruption by COVID-19.  
 
Businesses Recommended for Funding 

Aesthetics by Tina 

Big Guys Auto LLC 

Bill's Barber Shop 

Bush Family Investments (Pizza Shoppe) 

Children First Montessori 

Cornerstone Coffee LLC 

DKSH (Lane) Accounting 

Flauntit Hair Salon 

Frankum Chiropractic 

High Tide Properties 

Hildebrand Dental 

Kelly's Nook 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 78 

Kids Kloset 

Lin China King Inc 

Meg Development 

MM Health & Wellness 

Mormac Enterprises (Nellie's) 

Smithville Music 

Talley Inc. 

Temams llc 

Wag-a-lotz 

 
 
Two businesses (Cornerstone Coffee LLC and Kelly’s Nook) have been marked 
“Recommended Conditionally” because they were established in 2020 and did not 
have 2019 business licenses. Staff have included these in the recommendation based 
on CCEDC’s review of their current financial documents and impact of COVID-19 to 
their businesses. 
 
CCEDC received three additional inquires from applicants who did not qualify. One 
was a non-profit applicant which was excluded from eligibility; one whose address 
was outside City limits; and one inquiry came after the deadline. Staff and CCEDC are 
in concurrence that these are not recommend for funding at this time. 
 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan: N/A 

Economic Development Plan: Complies 

Parks Master Plan: N/A 

Strategic Plan: N/A 

Capital Improvement Plan: N/A 

Budget: Complies 

Legislative History: 

Resolution 792, Approval of MOU with CCEDC 

Suggested Action: 

Motion to approve Resolution 804. 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

  Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other: 
Applications, 
Program Overview 

 

https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/Res804CARESSmallBusinessGrantApplagenda11736134071620-021429PMe.pdf


  Regular Session 

 Page 79 July 21, 2020 

RESOLUTION 804 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO AWARD CARES SMALL BUSINESS 
GRANTS. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Smithville, Missouri (the “City”) is a fourth-class city and 
political subdivision duly organized and validly existing under the Constitution and 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 
WHEREAS, Congress passed, and the President signed, the Coronavirus Aid Relief and 
Economic Security (CARES) Act on March 27, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, On May 1, 2020 the Clay County Commission approved Resolution 2020-
139, providing CARES funding to the City of Smithville for eligible expenses incurred 
between March 1, 2020 and December 30, 2020 to address the COVID-19 pandemic 
 
WHEREAS, Certain types of grants are indicated in the guidance as potentially eligible, 
including expenditures related to the provision of grants to small businesses to 
reimburse the costs of business interruption caused by required closures; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with Clay County EDC 
to administer the program; and  
 
WHEREAS, applications were accepted and reviewed by the Clay County EDC from 
June 14-July 10, 2020, resulting in the following recommendations.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THAT the following small businesses will receive a $5,000 grant funded through the 
CARES fund for a total of $105,000: 
 

Aesthetics by Tina 

Big Guys Auto LLC 

Bill's Barber Shop 

Bush Family Investments (Pizza Shoppe) 

Children First Montessori 

Cornerstone Coffee LLC 

DKSH (Lane) Accounting 

Flaunt-It Hair Salon 

Frankum Chiropractic 

High Tide Properties 

Hildebrand Dental 

Kelly's Nook 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 80 

Kids Kloset 

Lin China King Inc 

Meg Development 

MM Health & Wellness 

Mormac Enterprises (Nellie's) 

Smithville Music 

Talley Inc. 

Temams LLC 

Wag-a-Lotz 

  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor 
Pro-Tem of the City of Smithville, Missouri, the 21st day of July 2020. 
 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Jeff Bloemker, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
              ____________________________________ 
                               Linda Drummond, City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 81 July 21, 2020 

 
CARES Smithville Small Business Grant Program  
Information Sheet  

 
Congress passed, and the President signed, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security 
(CARES) Act on March 27, 2020. On May 1, 2020, the Clay County Commission approved 
Resolution 2020-139, providing CARES funding to the City of Smithville for eligible expenses 
incurred between March 1, 2020 and December 30, 2020 to address the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
The Board of Aldermen established the CARES Small Business Grant Program on June 23, 2020 
to be administered by the Clay County EDC. This program will issue up to $100,000 in total 
grant funds to small businesses in Smithville. Small businesses can apply for a grant up to 
$5,000 to reimburse business expenses related to COVID-19.  
 
Eligible businesses include:  
• Businesses physically located in Smithville.  
• Businesses must have had a valid 2019 Business License.  
• Public-facing businesses directly impacted by the “Stay at Home” order such as retail, food 

service, arts and entertainment, hospitality, fitness, medical, and personal services.  
• Businesses or individual whose primary revenue is generated from rental properties.  
 
Businesses do not qualify if they are a:  
• National franchise.  
• Non-profit organization.  
• Business with current liens by the City or fees owed to the City of Smithville.  
 
Priority will be given to:  
• Businesses that have 20 or fewer full-time equivalent employees, and;  
• Businesses that have $2.5 million or less in annual revenue.  
• Businesses that have not received certain Federal COVID‐19 related relief (excluding Payroll 

Protection Program funds). Please disclose if you have received any COVID‐19 related relief 
funding. 

 
Eligible Use of Funds:  
 

1. Grants can be used for expenses incurred from March 1, 2020 through June 30, 2020. 
Expenses can include but are not limited to payroll (provided federal funds have not 
already been received for this purpose), rent, mortgage interest, utilities, inventory 
replacement, and COVID-19 supplies.  
 

2. The grant funds may also be used to purchase necessary protective equipment for 
employees and customers and for exterior/interior cleaning needed to keep facilities 
sanitized.  



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 82 

 

 
Ineligible Use of Funds:  
 

1. Grant funds may not be used for repayment of any federal or state loan programs 
related to COVID-19 relief funding.  
 

2. Grant funds may not be used for any purposes outside of the Federal guidelines as set 

forth in https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/cares/state-and-local-
governments 

 
Additional Information:  
• Grant applicants must provide documentation for eligible COVID-19 expenses.  
• Grant fund applications and information is considered public information under the Missouri 

Sunshine Laws.  
• Grant fund expenditures may be audited at a future date. Improper usage will require 

reimbursements to the City within 10 days of demand by the City for return of funds. 
• In reviewing and considering the grant applications, it is the policy of the City of Smithville 

and the Clay County EDC to ensure equal opportunity without discrimination on the basis of 
race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, age, disability, 
marital status, citizenship, national origin, genetic information, or any other characteristic 
protected by law.  

 
 

CARES Small Business Grant Applications accepted from June 24 – 
July 10, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/cares/state-and-local-governments
https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/cares/state-and-local-governments


  Regular Session 

 Page 83 July 21, 2020 

CARES Smithville Small Business Grant Program  
Application Form  
 

Requirements – These records must be presented with this application  
□ Two forms of ID (each signer) – one with picture other with name only  
□ Two years of business tax returns (Schedules and 1099s, Income Statement & Balance Sheet 

for LLC’s, C-Corps, and S-Corps)  

□ Two years of personal tax returns (Schedules and 1099s, Income Statement & 
Balance Sheet for Sole Proprietors) of 

□ Three months of business and personal (Sole Proprietors only) bank statements (99s  
□ Copy of 2019 Smithville Business License  

  

p  

 

Legal Name of Company:________________________________________________________ 
 

Physical Address:____________________________ City : _______________ State: ______ 
Zip:__________  
 

Length of time you have been in business in Smithville: ________________________________ 
 

Name of Grant Applicant: _______________________________________________________ 
 

Business Phone Number: _______________________ Cell Phone Number: ________________ 
 

Email address:_________________________________________________________________ 
 

Type of Business:_______________________________________________________________  
 
Explanation of how funds will be used: Items can include specific cash flow gaps, payroll 
or any fixed operating costs required to remain solvent and/or scaling down, reducing 
expenses, purchasing cleaning and personal protection equipment, and any additional proactive 
measures due to the crisis (documentation required).  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
How will this grant help you get through the COVID-19 crisis:  
_____________________________________________________________________________  
_____________________________________________________________________________  
_____________________________________________________________________________  
 
I/We certify that the above information, including any attachments or exhibits provided 
herewith are valid and correct to the best of my/our knowledge.  
 
Signature:______________________________________________ Date:__________________  
 
Signature:______________________________________________ Date:__________________  
 
Please email all information to juliel@clayedc.com SUBJECT: Smithville Grant Application  
Clay County Economic Development - 816-468-4989 -7001 N. Locust, Gladstone, MO 64118 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 84 

CARES ACT FUNDING - BID AWARD NO. 20-09 – TOUCHLESS FIXTURES 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: July 21, 2020 Department: All 

Agenda Item: 
Resolution 805 – Bid Award for Touchless Restroom & Kitchen 
Fixtures 

Summary: 

The FY20 Budget includes monies in the CARES Act Stimulus Fund for Touchless 
Restroom & Kitchen Fixtures.  
 
In accordance with the City’s Municipal Code, Chapter 150 – Purchasing Policy, a 
Request for Proposal (RFP) was issued on June 18, 2020 with a closing time of 10:00 
a.m. on July 1, 2020.  
 
Three responses were received, and a bid tabulation is attached. The project was bid 
as three individual sub-projects - the Senior Center only; City Hall, Parks Building, 
Streets Building, Water Plant, and Wastewater Plant; and all parks restrooms 
collectively – and as a whole for all buildings together. The low bidder for all 
locations, Lexington Plumbing at $107,657, had positive references, has positive prior 
working experience with the City, and staff met with the low bidder to discuss the 
project in person.  
 
City staff recommends Lexington Plumbing as the lowest and best offeror according 
to the evaluation criteria established in the RFP. Staff recommends that the project be 
awarded for all locations.  
 
Additionally, staff recommends that a provisional amount of $16,343 be included in 
the contract amount for unforeseen plumbing or electrical issues, or fixture 
replacement, for a total contract award of an amount not to exceed $124,000. If any 
of this provisional amount is expended, that would be funded by the General Fund 
and not the CARES Act Stimulus Fund. 
 
Lexington Plumbing is prepared to begin working on the project immediately with 
completion anticipated by September 1 (unless delayed by shipping timeframes). The 
contractor is aware of Clay County Public Health Center and CDC guidelines regarding 
COVID-19 and will comply with those recommendations throughout the duration of 
the project. 
 
 
 
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 85 July 21, 2020 

Purpose:  

To award Bid#20-09 to Lexington Plumbing according to policy in an amount not to 
exceed of $124,000. 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan:  N/A 

Economic Development Plan:   N/A 

Parks Master Plan:  N/A 

Strategic Plan:  N/A 

Capital Improvement Plan:  N/A 

Budget:  
Included in the FY20 CARES Act Stimulus Fund 
and General fund Budgets 

Legislative History: 

None 

Suggested Action: 

Motion to approve Resolution 805. 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

  Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other: Bid, Bid Tabulation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/Res805BidAward-TouchlessFixturesagenda11736134071620-022125PMg.pdf
https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/Res805BidAward-TouchlessFixturesagenda11736134071620-022125PMf.pdf


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 86 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 87 July 21, 2020 

ADDENDUM TO CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S CONTRACT 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: July 21, 2020 Department: Administration 

Agenda Item: Resolution 806, City Administrator Contract Addendum  

Summary:  

This Resolution to approves an addendum to the contract with Cynthia Wagner for 
services as City Administrator based on the review conducted previously by the Board 
of Aldermen.  

 Purpose:   

The attached resolution amends the Employment Agreement for City Administrator 
services with Cynthia Wagner to incorporate the following changes: 
 

• Increases annual compensation. 
• Includes one-time payment of $1,200 in lieu of retroactivity of the contract to 

employee anniversary date. 
• Provides for additional annual leave in the form of personal/executive leave 

time to be utilized within each calendar year. 
• Increases contribution to retirement provided in lieu of health insurance. 
• Increases vehicle allowance. 
• Amends severance pay agreement. 

Impact 

Comprehensive Plan: None 

Economic Development Plan: None 

Parks Master Plan: None 

Strategic Plan: None 

Capital Improvement Plan: None 

Budget: Item Budgeted 

Legislative History:  

Original agreement adopted in April 2018 was amended in April, 2019.  Employee 
performance review was delayed to May in 2020 due to COVID-19 gathering 
restrictions. 

Suggested Action:  

 Motion to approve Resolution 806. 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report  

 Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other:  



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 88 

RESOLUTION 806 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S 

CONTRACT  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Smithville (CITY) and Cynthia Wagner (EMPLOYEE) Previously 
Entered into an Employment Agreement for the Position of City Administrator on April 
16, 2018; and, 
 
WHEREAS, that agreement was previously amended on April 16, 2019; and,   
 
WHEREAS, EMPLOYEE has completed two years of service to the CITY as of April 17, 
2020; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The CITY and EMPLOYEE wish to amend and augment certain parts of the 
Employment Agreement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, CITY and EMPLOYEE wish to memorialize the changes to the Employment 
Agreement. 
 
II. RESOLUTION 
 
Be it resolved by the City of SMITHVILLE Missouri that City Administrator, Cynthia 
Wagner’s   Employment Agreement dated April 16, 2018 shall be amended as follows: 
 

 (1)  All previous amendments to the April 16, 2018 agreement are superseded by 
these amendments. 

 
(2)  Paragraph 4.1 of the Employment agreement shall be modified to read as 

follows:  
 

4.1 CITY agrees to pay EMPLOYEE as compensation for the duties to be 
performed under this Agreement the base salary of One Hundred Twenty 
Thousand Dollars ($120,000.00) per year, to be payable in 26 equal payments at 
the time, and as a part of the regular payroll of the City, and subject to all such 
lawful deductions for payment to employees of the City.  In addition to the 
forgoing, EMPLOYEE shall receive a onetime payment of Twelve Hundred Dollars 
($1,200.00) for agreeing to sign this agreement, subject to all such lawful 
deductions for payment to employees of the City.    
 

(3)  Paragraph 5.1 of the Employment agreement shall be modified to read as 
follows:  

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 89 July 21, 2020 

5.1 Sick and Vacation Leave.  Upon commencing employment, the EMPLOYEE 
shall be credited with ten (10) days of vacation leave.  In addition to the above, 
vacation and sick leave EMPLOYEE shall accrue sick leave and vacation leave, as 
well as all other leaves granted employees of the City and contained in 
EMPLOYER’S Personnel Manual.  In an addition to the forgoing, effective 
immediately Employee shall be entitled to five days of “personal/executive leave” 
on an annual basis calculated from the employment anniversary date of April 16.  
This leave is on a “use it or lose it” basis, accrued on each anniversary date.  If 
the leave is not used within the employees employment calendar year (April 16) 
the EMPLOYEE is not entitled to accrue the “personal/executive leave” or receive 
cash for it. 
 

(4)  Paragraph 5.2 of the Employment agreement shall be modified to read as 
follows:  

 
5.2 In Lieu of Health Insurance.  EMPLOYEE Represents that she has health 
Insurance through another source and wishes to decline all Health, Dental or 
Vision Insurance through the current Plans in place by the City on such terms 
and conditions as is available for all other employees of the City.  The City will 
pay Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) per year, to be payable in 24 equal 
payments (two per month) to EMPLOYEE’S IRS 457 plan subject to all applicable 
rules and regulations in lieu of the City providing EMPLOYEE any Health, Dental 
or Vision insurance.  
 

(5)  Paragraph 5.4 of the Employment agreement shall be modified to read as 
follows: 

  
5.4 Vehicle Allowance: In addition to the moneys paid as salary, the City agrees 
to pay EMPLOYEE an additional sum for a car allowance in the amount of Forty 
Two Hundred Dollars ($4,200.00) per year to be payable in 26 equal payments in 
accordance with the current payroll procedures for these payments, to be used as 
a vehicle allowance to be used to purchase, lease, or own, operate and maintain 
a vehicle. Consideration shall be given on an annual basis to adjust the monthly 
allowance dependent upon changes in travel demands and routine vehicle fuel 
and maintenance costs. The EMPLOYEE shall be responsible for paying for 
liability, property damage, and comprehensive insurance coverage upon such 
vehicle and shall further be responsible for all expenses attendant to the 
purchase, operation, maintenance, repair, and regular replacement of said 
vehicle. The EMPLOYER shall reimburse the EMPLOYEE at the IRS standard 
mileage rate for any business use of the vehicle beyond the greater Kansas City 
area, subject to current policy for travel reimbursement that applies to all other 
employees.  Travel to and from EMPLOYEE’S home outside the City of Smithville 
to the City shall not be eligible for reimbursement.  
 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 90 

Paragraph 11.2(a) of the Employment agreement shall be modified to read as 
follows: 

11.2 Severance Pay: City will continue payment to the EMPLOYEE as set forth 
herein.   

(a) The severance pay is a benefit equal to Ten Months (10) Months of salary as 
set forth in paragraph 4.1.  if Employee’s employment is terminated prior to April 
16, 2020.  If terminated after April 16, 2020 but before April 16, 2021 severance 
pay will be equal to Eleven (11) Months of salary as set forth in paragraph 4.1.  
If terminated after April 16, 2022 severance pay will be equal to Twelve (12) 
Months of salary as set forth in paragraph 4.1. If entitled to severance pay, the 
EMPLOYEE shall also be compensated for all accrued but unused vacation and 
sick leave (subject to any restrictions or caps set forth in EMPLOYER’S Personnel 
Manual, as amended from time to time).  Severance pay shall not include any 
unaccrued amounts due under paragraphs 5.1 through 5.6 of this Agreement.  

All other portions of the City Administrator, Cynthia Wagner’s Employment 
Agreement dated April 16, 2018 shall remain unchanged. 

 

 
III. EXECUTION/ADOPTION 
 
         July 21, 2020   
Jeff Bloemker, Mayor Pro-Tem     Date 
 
 
Attested: 
 
 
       
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 
 

 

 


